
0                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                           
 
 
 
 
  00 

 
 

AGENDA  
 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 

MONDAY, SEPTEMBER 30, 2019 
 
 
ROLL CALL     7:00 P.M. 
 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 
PRESENTATION 
 
CITY OF PERU HEALTH AND WELLNESS COMMITTEE TO PRESENT CHECK TO SPECIAL OLYMPICS 
 
MINUTES 
 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES OF SEPTEMBER 3, 2019 
 
 
FINANCIAL REPORTS 
 
SALES, HOME RULE, USE AND TELECOMMUNICATION TAX RECEIPTS FOR JUNE 2019 
 
ACTIVITY REPORTS 
 
PERU POLICE DEPARTMENT MONTHLY REPORT FOR AUGUST 2019 
 
PERU VOLUNTEER AMBULANCE SERVICE INC. ACTIVITY SUMMARY FOR AUGUST 2019 
 
 
COMMITTEE REPORTS      ALDERMEN 

 
1. FINANCE AND SAFETY SERVICES   Chairman Radtke, Sapienza,  

       Payton, Buffo & Mayor Harl 
 DISBURSEMENTS for September 18, 2019 

    
Motion to approve the reinvestment of Utility Fund reserves of $400,000 for 24 months at 
1.75% with Peru Federal Savings Bank. 
 



Motion to approve the reinvestment of Utility Fund reserves of $350,000 for 36 months at 
1.85% with Hometown Bank. 
 
 

2. PUBLIC SERVICES     Chairman Waldorf, Ferrari,  
       Lukosus, Ballard & Mayor Harl 
 
Motion to award the N. Peoria Roadway Improvements to Advanced Asphalt in the amount of 
$3,960,409.05 
 
Motion to concur with IDOT’s award of the Unytite Drive (PISCES I) project to Advanced 
Asphalt in the amount of $1,487,055.65 

 
Motion to award the Cemetery Road Resurfacing project to Universal Asphalt & Excavating in 
the amount of $116,689.55. 
 
Motion to award the base bid for the 1902 4th Street Parking Lot project to Opperman 
Construction in the amount of $148,939.50. 
 
Motion to authorize purchase of 2019 Ford F-350 Chassis 4x2 SD Super Cab and box truck 
from Currie Commercial Center in the amount of $51,289.00 
 
Motion to authorize update and repair of Well 9 with Layne Christensen in the amount of 
$186,391.00  
 

 
REPORT OF CITY ATTORNEY/ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS 
 
AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING ACCEPTANCE OF UTILITY EASEMENT FROM U.S. SILICA COMPANY NEAR 
DONLAR AVENUE (E 1ST ROAD), PERU, ILLINOIS  
 
MINUTES OF PUBLIC HEARING ON PETITION OF KATHLEEN M. BUDNICK CONCERNING THE PROPERTY 
LOCATED AT 1803 JOANN DRIVE, PERU, IL  
 
AN ORDINANCE GRANTING A VARIANCE UNDER THE ZONING ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF PERU AS SOUGHT 
BY THE PETITION OF KATHLEEN M. BUDNICK CONCERNING PROPERTY LOCATED AT 1803 JOANN DRIVE, 
PERU, IL 
 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 74-PARKS AND RECREATION, ARTICLE II.-SUPERINTENDENT OF 
PARKS, OF PERU CODE OF ORDINANCES TO PROVIDE FOR THE CREATION OF THE PARKS RECREATION AND 
SPECIAL EVENTS DEPARTMENT 
 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 74-PARKS AND RECREATION BOARD OF THE CITY OF PERU CODE OF 
ORDINANCES  
 
PROCLAMATION 
 
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
Motion to approve an agreement with Leopardo Companies, Inc. for a cost-plus fee with option for GMP, 
subject to final attorney review and approval, for the proposed Peru Police Station. 
 
 



NEW BUSINESS     
 
Discuss and motion to seek applicants for retiring Utility Billing Clerk (Candidate to cross train Clerk’s Office, 
Utility Billing, and Finance Department) 
 
Discuss and motion to seek applicants for Director of Parks, Recreation, and Special Events 
 
 
PETITIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS 
 
ITEM NO. 1 Communication from Martha Moscosa requesting a variance for the property located at 1815 

14th Street. 
 
ITEM NO. 2 Communication from Frank Kobilsek of Illinois Valley Sunrise Rotary requesting permission to 

hold an awareness walk beginning at the Peru Municipal Building to La Salle City Hall on 
October 24th in observation of World Polio Day 

 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 
CLOSED SESSION 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT   
 





CITY OF PERU REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING SEPTEMBER 16, 2019 
   

 1 

A regular meeting of the Peru City Council was called to order by Mayor Scott J. Harl in the Peru City Council 
Chambers on Monday, September 16, 2019 at 7:00 p.m. 
 
City Clerk Dave Bartley called the roll with Aldermen Ferrari, Waldorf, Lukosus, Radtke, Sapienza, Ballard and 
Buffo present; Alderman Payton absent, Mayor Harl present. 
 
All joined in the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag of the United States of America. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
PRESENTATION 
 
Mayor Harl presented Eagle Scouts Christian Risk, Colton Sittler, Carson Vaske and Joseph Vlastnik the City of 
Peru Good Neighbor Recognition for their work on community projects as part of their quest to achieve the eagle 
scout ranking.  
 
Mr. Steve Aubry of North Central Illinois Development Corporation introduced the new President and CEO Mr. 
Mike Kirchhoff to the council. Mr. Kirchhoff provided his economic development background as follows: 

• Provided bio from Effingham 
• 30 years of experience 
• Worked for DECA and Ameren 
• Multiple positions in economic development 

 
Mayor Harl introduced Mr. Luke Tomsha of The Perfectly Flawed Foundation. Mr. Tomsha thanked the City 
supporting the Back to School Bash in which 500 youth were served. Mr. Tomsha provided information regarding 
the foundation: 

• 501C3-Addictive use opioid epidemic 
o Goal is to provide options for help and treatment 
o Transitioning back to work and life  

• Office hours-La Salle Train Station-Monday through Friday; 10:00 a.m.-3:00 p.m. 
o 24-hour emergency support 
o Support groups and empowerment  
o 250 families helped 

 
MINUTES 
 
Mayor Harl presented the minutes of the Regular Meeting of September 3, 2019. Alderman Waldorf made a motion 
that the minutes be received and placed on file. Alderman Lukusos seconded the motion; motion carried. 
 
FINANCIAL REPORTS 
 
Mayor Harl presented Treasurer’s Report for August 2019; City Clerk’s Report of Cash Received for August 2019; 
General Fund and Miscellaneous Funds Report for July 2019, Utility Fund Report for July 2019 and the Peru 
Recreation Fund Cash Accounts Summary for August 2019. Alderman Radtke made a motion the reports be 
received and placed on file. Alderman Sapienza seconded the motion; motion carried. 
 
ACTIVITY REPORTS 
 
FINANCE AND SAFETY COMMITTEE 
 
Alderman Radtke presented the following disbursements for payment on September 18, 2019: 
 
 

FUND NAME     TOTAL EXPENSES 
 
 General Fund $364,889.47 



CITY OF PERU REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING SEPTEMBER 16, 2019 
   

 2 

 Insurance Fund 5,367.07 

 Garbage Fund 33,008.40 

 Recreation Fund 439.38 

 TIF I 1,954.00 

 TIF II (Industrial) 10,189.00 

 TIF III (Commercial) 5,377.00 

 Utility Fund 1,845,146.91 

 Airport Fund 2,526.92 

 Total $2,268,898.15 

Alderman Sapienza made a motion that the report be received, placed on file and the bills be paid in the usual 
manner.  Alderman Buffo seconded the motion. City Clerk Dave Bartley called the roll with Aldermen Ferrari, 
Waldorf, Lukosus, Radtke, Sapienza, Ballard and Buffo voting aye; Alderman Payton absent; motion carried. 
 
PUBLIC SERVICES COMMITTEE 
 
Alderman Ballard made a motion to execute an Engineering Service Agreement with Chamlin & Associates for the 
extension of 26th Street west from N. Peoria St. Alderman Waldorf seconded the motion. Alderman Waldorf 
seconded the motion. City Engineer Eric Carls stated the fees would be percentage based and phased in. City Clerk 
Dave Bartley called the roll with Aldermen Ferrari, Waldorf, Lukosus, Radtke, Sapienza, Ballard and Buffo voting 
aye; Alderman Payton absent; motion carried. 
 
Alderman Ballard made a motion to execute an Engineering Service Agreement with Chamlin & Associates for the 
extension of Midtown Road west from N. Peoria St. Alderman Lukosus seconded the motion. City Engineer Eric 
Carls stated the fees would be percentage based and phased in. City Clerk Dave Bartley called the roll with 
Aldermen Ferrari, Waldorf, Lukosus, Radtke, Sapienza, Ballard and Buffo voting aye; Alderman Payton absent; 
motion carried. 
 
REPORT OF CITY ATTORNEY/ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS 
 
Corporate Counsel Scott Schweickert presented the minutes of a public hearing held on September 11, 2019 
concerning proposed text amendment to the City of Peru Zoning Ordinance pertaining to Adult-Use Cannabis 
zoning regulations. Alderman Ferrari made a motion the minutes be received, placed on file and concur with the 
recommendation. Alderman Buffo seconded the motion; motion carried.  
 
Corporate Counsel Scott Schweickert presented a proposed ordinance entitled: 
 
ORDINANCE NO. 6415 
 
AN AMENDING THE CITY OF PERU ZONING ORDINANCE PERTAINING TO ADULT-USE 
CANNABIS 
 
Alderman Waldorf made a motion the ordinance be adopted as written and read. Alderman Sapienza seconded the 
motion. Corporate Counsel Scott Schweickert highlighted the following: 

• B4 zoning for dispensaries (6 types) 
• M2 zoning for cultivation centers (growers) 
• All would require special use 
• Most located north of Wenzel Road near I-80 

City Clerk Dave Bartley called the roll with Aldermen Ferrari, Waldorf, Lukosus, Radtke, Sapienza, Ballard and 
Buffo voting aye; Alderman Payton absent; motion carried. 
 
Corporate Counsel Scott Schweickert presented the minutes of a public hearing held on September 11, 2019 
concerning the petition of James S. Happ and Susan J. Happ concerning property located at 902 14th Street, Peru, IL. 



CITY OF PERU REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING SEPTEMBER 16, 2019 
   

 3 

Alderman Ferrari made a motion the minutes be received, placed on file and concur with the recommendation. 
Alderman Buffo seconded the motion; motion carried.  
 
Corporate Counsel Scott Schweickert presented a proposed ordinance entitled: 
 
ORDINANCE NO. 6416 
 
AN ORDINANCE GRANTING VARIANCES UNDER THE ZONING ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF 
PERU AS SOUGHT BY THE PETITION OF JAMES S. HAPP AND SUSAN J. HAPP CONCERNING 
PROPERTY LOCATED AT 902 14TH STREET, PERU, IL 
 
Alderman Ballard made a motion the ordinance be adopted as written and read. Alderman Ferrari seconded the 
motion. City Clerk Dave Bartley called the roll with Aldermen Ferrari, Waldorf, Lukosus, Radtke, Sapienza, Ballard 
and Buffo voting aye; Alderman Payton absent; motion carried. 
 
PROCLAMATIONS 
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
Mayor Harl announced his proposal to allocate $1,000,000 of reserves to alderman as a 10-year disc fund or $25,000 
per ward, per year. Mayor Harl stated it would be for select sidewalks and alleys or other miscellaneous items. 
Alderman Sapienza stated he was in favor of the proposed plan. City Engineer Eric Carls noted this is a 
supplemental program in addition to the primary road programs. Alderman Radtke stated he would like the Finance 
and Safety Services Committee to review financial options.  
 
Mayor Harl reported the Electric Department has continued to voice concerns about transformers at the Water Street 
Substation. Mayor Harl stated BHMG will provide a proposal at the next regular meeting. 
 
Mayor Harl reported on the RFP received regarding a pool feasibility study. Mayor Harl asked for a 
recommendation by the selected people to move forward with selected consultant. By straw poll, council agreed to 
move forward. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
Alderman Lukosus made a motion to approve selected candidate for the position of Public Services Office Assistant. 
Alderman Sapienza seconded the motion. PSM/Fire Chief Jeff King reported four very qualified candidates were 
interviewed. PSM/Fire Chief King reported the candidate will be located at the Electric Department but will also 
work at the Public Works Department. 
 
PETITIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS 
 
Clerk Bartley presented a communication from LaSalle-Peru Township High School requesting permission to hold 
the annual Homecoming Parade on Thursday, September 26th at 4:00 p.m.; No Parking signs around Rotary Park. 
Alderman Buffo made a motion the communication be received, placed on file and permission granted. Alderman 
Ferrari seconded the motion; motion carried. 
 
Clerk Bartley presented a communication from St. Bede inviting the City of Peru to the annual Homecoming Parade 
on Thursday, September 19th at 5:45 p.m. Alderman Ferrari made a motion the communication be received, placed 
on file and permission granted. Alderman Sapienza seconded the motion; motion carried. 
 
Clerk Bartley presented a communication from Kelly Williams, IVCH Director of Rehabilitation Services Center for 
Physical Rehabilitation and Aquatics requesting permission to hold the annual IVCH Fall Fitness 5K run/walk on 
October 12th. Alderman Radtke made a motion the communication be received, placed on file and permission 
granted. Alderman Sapienza seconded the motion; motion carried. 
 
 
 



CITY OF PERU REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING SEPTEMBER 16, 2019 
   

 4 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
CLOSED SESSION 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Alderman Ferrari made a motion that the meeting be adjourned. Alderman Waldorf seconded the motion and motion 
carried. Meeting adjourned 8:02 p.m.  



CITY OF PERU SALES, HOME RULE, USE AND TELECOMMUNICATION TAX RECEIPTS            2018-2019

2018-HRT 1.0% YTD Total Incr (Decr) 2019-HRT 1.0% YTD Total Incr (Decr)

Jan-Use tax 19,610.25      21,582.52         
Jan-Telecom tax 18,195.20      16,592.24         
Jan-Sales 459,099.57    420,893.97       
Jan-Home Rule 286,890.64    264,705.97       
Jan-Total 783,795.66    783,795.66      66,171.45      723,774.70       723,774.70      (60,020.96)          

Feb-Use tax 20,166.98      24,863.37         
Feb-Telecom tax 16,933.20      15,688.82         
Feb-Sales 420,325.46    437,638.05       
Feb-Home Rule 266,308.39    269,504.18       
Feb-Total 723,734.03    1,507,529.69   1,953.24        747,694.42       1,471,469.12   23,960.39           

Mar-Use tax 24,354.70      28,265.28         
Mar-Telecom tax 18,575.54      15,965.06         
Mar-Sales 536,003.87    526,712.53       
Mar-Home Rule 344,016.34    331,598.41       
Mar-Total 922,950.45    2,430,480.14   50,970.80      902,541.28       2,374,010.40   (20,409.17)          

Apr-Use tax 21,256.01      26,753.50         
Apr-Telecom tax 17,521.42      15,222.40         
Apr-Sales 524,444.23    532,825.45       
Apr-Home Rule 356,452.37    340,164.21       
Apr-Total 919,674.03    3,350,154.17   33,230.61      914,965.56       3,288,975.96   (4,708.47)            

May-Use tax 23,178.12      26,869.09         
May-Telecom tax 17,934.63      15,333.16         
May-Sales 542,902.81    549,364.75       
May-Home Rule 374,614.22    357,681.81       
May-Total 958,629.78    4,308,783.95   79,338.89      949,248.81       4,238,224.77   (9,380.97)            

Jun-Use tax 24,822.75      27,315.17         
Jun-Telecom tax 17,528.54      14,796.42         
Jun-Sales 585,593.34    532,566.53       
Jun-Home Rule 395,550.54    347,510.49       
Jun-Total 1,023,495.17 5,332,279.12   109,035.59    922,188.61       5,160,413.38   (101,306.56)        

Jul-Use tax 24,079.96      -                    
Jul-Telecom tax 17,190.57      -                    
Jul-Sales 533,775.68    -                    
Jul-Home Rule 351,625.52    -                    
Jul-Total 926,671.73    6,258,950.85   89,958.59      -                    5,160,413.38   

Aug-Use tax 22,900.92      -                    
Aug-Telecom tax 17,424.65      -                    
Aug-Sales 506,165.40    -                    
Aug-Home Rule 335,543.84    -                    
Aug-Total 882,034.81    7,140,985.66   47,089.30      -                    5,160,413.38   

Sep-Use tax 26,270.79      -                    
Sep-Telecom tax 16,894.30      -                    
Sep-Sales 478,205.32    -                    
Sep-Home Rule 313,113.61    -                    
Sep-Total 834,484.02    7,975,469.68   (13,768.97)     -                    5,160,413.38   

1



CITY OF PERU SALES, HOME RULE, USE AND TELECOMMUNICATION TAX RECEIPTS            2018-2019

2018-HRT 1.0% YTD Total Incr (Decr) 2019-HRT 1.0% YTD Total Incr (Decr)

Oct-Use tax 27,806.99      -                    
Oct-Telecom tax 17,292.86      -                    
Oct-Sales 510,369.77    -                    
Oct-Home Rule 327,113.50    -                    
Oct-Total 882,583.12    8,858,052.80   27,792.33      -                    5,160,413.38   

Nov-Use tax 30,767.58      -                    
Nov-Telecom tax 17,539.72      -                    
Nov-Sales 516,701.74    -                    
Nov-Home Rule 351,900.38    -                    
Nov-Total 916,909.42    9,774,962.22   2,856.03        -                    5,160,413.38   

Dec-Use tax 37,205.54      -                    
Dec-Telecom tax 17,372.67      -                    
Dec-Sales 585,452.34    -                    
Dec-Home Rule 394,793.89    -                    
Dec-Total 1,034,824.44 10,809,786.66    (28,532.87)     -                    5,160,413.38      -                      

TOTAL 10,809,786.66    466,094.99    5,160,413.38      (171,865.74)        

BREAKDOWN

2018 Incr over prev yr 2019 Incr over prev yr

Use Tax 302,420.59    20.9% 155,648.93       

Telecom tax 210,403.30    -10.5% 93,598.10         

Sales Tax 6,199,039.53 4.4% 3,000,001.28    

HRT-Parkside 2,048,961.62 4.5% 955,582.54       
HRT-Infrastucture 2,048,961.62 4.5% 955,582.54       

* 55,667.90      * 29,502.18         

*Loss due to State Adm fees

2




































































































	Agenda 093019
	MONDAY, SEPTEMBER 30, 2019
	MINUTES
	COMMITTEE REPORTS      ALDERMEN
	PROCLAMATION
	UNFINISHED BUSINESS
	NEW BUSINESS
	PETITIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS
	PUBLIC COMMENT
	ADJOURNMENT


	Special Olympics Check
	Regular Meeting Minutes 091619
	All joined in the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag of the United States of America.
	UPUBLIC COMMENT
	UPRESENTATION
	Mayor Harl presented Eagle Scouts Christian Risk, Colton Sittler, Carson Vaske and Joseph Vlastnik the City of Peru Good Neighbor Recognition for their work on community projects as part of their quest to achieve the eagle scout ranking.
	Mr. Steve Aubry of North Central Illinois Development Corporation introduced the new President and CEO Mr. Mike Kirchhoff to the council. Mr. Kirchhoff provided his economic development background as follows:
	 Provided bio from Effingham
	 30 years of experience
	 Worked for DECA and Ameren
	 Multiple positions in economic development
	Mayor Harl introduced Mr. Luke Tomsha of The Perfectly Flawed Foundation. Mr. Tomsha thanked the City supporting the Back to School Bash in which 500 youth were served. Mr. Tomsha provided information regarding the foundation:
	 501C3-Addictive use opioid epidemic
	o Goal is to provide options for help and treatment
	o Transitioning back to work and life
	 Office hours-La Salle Train Station-Monday through Friday; 10:00 a.m.-3:00 p.m.
	o 24-hour emergency support
	o Support groups and empowerment
	o 250 families helped
	UUNFINISHED BUSINESS
	Mayor Harl announced his proposal to allocate $1,000,000 of reserves to alderman as a 10-year disc fund or $25,000 per ward, per year. Mayor Harl stated it would be for select sidewalks and alleys or other miscellaneous items. Alderman Sapienza stated...
	Mayor Harl reported the Electric Department has continued to voice concerns about transformers at the Water Street Substation. Mayor Harl stated BHMG will provide a proposal at the next regular meeting.
	Mayor Harl reported on the RFP received regarding a pool feasibility study. Mayor Harl asked for a recommendation by the selected people to move forward with selected consultant. By straw poll, council agreed to move forward.
	UNEW BUSINESS
	Alderman Lukosus made a motion to approve selected candidate for the position of Public Services Office Assistant. Alderman Sapienza seconded the motion. PSM/Fire Chief Jeff King reported four very qualified candidates were interviewed. PSM/Fire Chief...

	Sales Tax Report-Jun 2019
	Police Dept Report Aug 2019
	PVAS Report
	Disbursements 100219
	Layne Christensen Quote
	Ordinance.Utility Easement.US Silica
	Minutes.Budnick
	Proposed Ordinance.Budnick
	Park Rec Ord 1
	Park Rec Ord 2
	Park Rec Job Descriptio
	Rotary World Polio Day

